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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL-APPEARANCE

St. Fidelis Catholéy/éhurch at Victoria is a large rural church
building in a Romanesqglie influenced style. It is constructed of
limestone cut in uniform horizontal courses with individual stones
varylng in length. The stone face is broken, giving a massive
rugticated appearance. The building plan is a typical nave and
transept style with dual towers flanking the west entrance. The
overall length is 220 feet with a width at the transept of 110

fget and at the nave of 73 feet. The interior height is 44 feet

while the twin towers rise 141 feet. The main roof is a double

pitch with wood shingles. Four-sided steep pitch roofs top each tower.
A dentiled cornice defines the roof line for the main building and

the towers.

Buttresses modulate each side’of the structure. Windows are long
narrow slits rising from a stone sill and terminating in a circular
stone arch. The colored glass windows are recognized as being of
very high quality. A large rose window is located directly above
the triple doors of the main entrance. Centered above it is a niche
with a stone statue of St. Fidelis. A projected water base encircles
the entire building.

A4301n1ng the church on the south is a large two-story native
stone monastery built in 1901- 1903 by the Capuchin Order, which also
houses a preparatory seminary of the order.

Basically St. Fidelis Church has not been changed much. Metal
doors have been -installed -in the main entrance, and the interior
has been redecorated.- The téwers$ row confain electrically operated

bells which can be heard seven or eight miles on a clear day.
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St. Fldells Cathollc Church at Victoria, commonly knownwas
the "Cathedral of the Plains," is a monument to “the faith and
coufagé of the Russian-German -immigrants who came to Kansas in
1876 to escape oppression in Russia. They established a settlement
called Herzog (named for a Russian village) a mile from the Victoria
colony, an aristocratic English colonial venture sponsored by
George Grant. The English colonists for the most part had departed
by the 1880's and their settlement and lands were acquired by the
Russian-German immigrants. The two settlements were consolidated
under the name of Victoria.

Religion was very important to these immigrants. For the first
year or two their church was a frame lean-to attached to the house
of one of the parishioners. Larger stone structures were erected
in 1878 and again in 1884 as the congregation increased. (The
first resident pastor was supplied in 1878 by.the Capuchin Order,
which has continued to provide the spiritual leadership of the
parish.) By 1800 the need for a larger church was again apparent,
and it was decided to built a church large enough to serve the
present and all future needs.

John T.Comes of Pittsburgb)Pa., one of the country's foremost
church architects, finished the plans in 1905. ese plans were
modified in 19 by a Topeka architect, John M3a¥shall. The E. F. A.
Clark Constrwftion Co. of Topeka began the construction in 1908;
the cornerstone was laid on October 4, 1909; and the building
was dedicated on Suday, August 27, 1911." Construction costs have
been estimated at $132,000.

Engineers estimate that 125,000 cubic feet of stone were
hauled from the quarries seven miles south of Victoria. No mechani-
cal or power equipment was available so all stones had to be
quarried by manpower and dressed by hand. Hired laborers did the
quarrying and construction work, while the parishioners donated
their time, horses, and wagons to haul thousands of loads of stone
and sand to the construction site.
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluatAe'd according to the criée“‘ri;a 'an;i procedures set
forth by the National Park Service.
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Titte Executive Secretary, Kansas
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Date  March 26, 1971
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National"Register. - -
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6. Federal Writers' Project of the Works Progress Administration
1939 (Federal)
Records destroyed. A guide book, Kansas, was published in 1939.

8. Bedford stone from Indiana was imported for the ornamental stone
in the doorways and for the capitals and bases of the large Vermont
granite pillars which support the roof and Gothic arches. The
colored glass windows were purchased from a firm in Chicago, and
it was only in the late 1940's that it was established that they
were made in Munich by one of the oldest colored glass firms in
the world. These windows are considered among the outstanding
church windows of their type in the United States.

When constructed it was the largest Catholic church west of
the Mississippi river, having a seating capacity of 1,100. The
church is dedicated to St. Fidelis of Sigmaringen, a priest of the
Capuchin Order who was martyred in 1622.

William Jennings Bryan, after seeing the twin spires of the
church rising majestically from the flat lands of northwest Kansas,
called it the "Cathedral of the Prairies.” Common usage has changed
it to "Cathedral of the Plains."

St. Fidelis is one of the largest and most prominent of Kansas'
rural churches. Visible for many miles, its twin towers dominate
the countryside. It is one of the most outstanding examples of
church architecture and construction in Kansas and has been a
landmark on the high plains since it was completed.

9. "Pioneer's Death Recalls Building of Victoria Church," Ellis County

News, March 4, 1948.

Raish, Marjorie Gamet, Victoria, the Story of a Western Kansas
Town, Fort Hays Kansas State College Sutdies, General Series,
No. 12 (Topeka, State Printer, 1947).

Robinson, James L., "Cathedral of the Plains," Topeka Daily
Capital, April 16, 1954.

"St. Fidelis Church" (n.p., n.d.), 6 pp. brochure.

"Tall Spires on the Prairie,"”" Kansas City Star, August 27, 1911.

Watson, John, "St. Fidelis, Cathedral of the Plains," Wichita
Evening Eagle, February 5, 1953.°
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COMMON

St. Fidelis Catholic Church

AND/OR HISTORIC:

Cathedral of the Plains"

STREET AND NUM BER!

Southeast corner of St. Anthony Street and Delaware Street

CITY OR TOWN:

Victoria
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SOURCE:

U.S.G.S. 7 1/2' guadrangle, Victoria I\ 2

1: 24,000

1961

2. North arrow.
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